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Ripon business patented the grain drill in 1867

This is the fourth in a series
of articles about Inventions Ri-
ponites designed that were ap-
proved by the US Patent Olffice
in Washington DC.

People from Ripon who ap-
plied for patents weren’t just
inventors. Most owned and oper-
ated businesses for their everyday
income. Some were farmers
seeking to improve their equip-
ment and related items. This is
similar to the Wright Brothers,
who invented the airplane when
their day job was operating a
bicycle shop.

Andrew R. Eggleston (1868-
1961) was born on a 120-acre
farm off of rural Eureka Road,
north of Ripon. Upon his father’s
death when he was 6 years old,
Eggleston moved with his mother
and siblings to a house at the
corner of State and Maple streets
in Ripon.

Eggleston grew up to have
a continued interest in farm-
ing, which drew him to become
the owner of 75 acres of land
just north of his father’s former
property.

He also became a business
partner with Charles F. Swain
(1832-1904) during the 1860s,
co-owning Eggleston & Swain
Farm Implements in Ripon.

Swain was the son of German
immigrants and he grew up to
become a machinist.

Inventors of the grain
drill and also sellers of
farm implements

On Feb. 19, 1867, Eggleston
& Swain were granted a U.S. Pat-
ent for the design of an improved
seeding machine.

Ahorse-drawn implement, the
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" ANDREW R. EGGLESTON AND CHARLES F. SWAIN, OF RIPON, WISCONSIN.
Letters Patent No. 62,259, dated February 19, 1867, ’

IMPROVED SEEDING MACHINE.

The Schedule veferred fo i these Petters Butent and making part of ﬂgt same.

TO ALL WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Be it known that we, Axprew R. Eceresrox and CHaries F. Swars, both of Ripon, in the county of
Fond du Lac, and State of Wisconsin, have invented 2 new and useful Improvement in Seeding Machines, of
which the following is a full, clesr, and exact description, reference being had to the accompanying drawings,

- which make part of this specification, and in which— .

Figure 1 is a view in perspéctive of a seeding machine having our improvement attached.

Figure 2 is 2 plan view of the inside of the hopper or grain-hox.

Figure3 is a section through the same on the line z 2 of fig. 2.

Figure 4 is a side view of one of the covering teeth; and

Figure 5 is a plan view of the scatterer. Co

Our improvements have relation to a class of machines for sowing small grain broadeast; and itis the object
of our invention to scatter the grain uniforiely over the surface to be planted, and to cover it evenly; to which
end our invention consists, first, in arranging a rapidly vibrating scattérer below the grain-box, so as to dis-
tribute the sceds uniformly upon the ground, however irregular its surface; sccond, in arranging a series of

2 mass upon the scatterers, but be agitated before passing through them; third, in making the axle of the
machine a box, to constitute the whole frame that supports the seed-box, the tongue, and the coverers, and to
form two of the sides of the series of boxes between the seed-trough amd the scatterer; fourth, in arranging
triangular-shaped openings, and combining therewith an adjustable gauge-slide, beneath the feed-rollers, to adapt
the gauge with facility to sowing either the fincst grass-seed or larger grain-with precision; fifth, in forming
the.drag-bars of the coverers of sheet-metal strips, and uniting these strips nearly centrally in pairs, so that
the right plate, side, or'strip of one bar, and the left plate of the next, shall he united with a single bolt to the
axle, while the coverers arc secured hetween their outer ends. :
The axle A is supported on two wheels, B, and C has a tongue, D, attached to its centre in front, and a
series of cultivator or covcriné teeth, « « a, attached behind, and it supports a sced-hopper or reservoir, E, on
. its top. Thusarranged, the axle alone constitutes the frame of our seeding machine. OQur axle is composed of
two plates, b and ¥, of suitable strength, placed some distance apart and parallel with each other.  Partition
blocks, ¢ ¢,are placed between them, and all are sccured together by screw-bolts, which may pass through the
blocks e in numbers sufficient to render the axle streng and rigid; and thus the spaces d between the partitions
serve to permit the sced to e agitated and separated before passing through the scatterer, and dispense with
any nccessity for guide-tubes. The journals for the wheels B and C may be attached bencath each end of the
axle; the tongne D may he fastened securcly to the centre of the piece ¥/, and the cultivators: or coverers may
be secured to the lower edge of the plate §, while the seed-box or lkopper may be hinged to the top of either
plate b or 2/, though in this example we have hinged it ‘to the front plate or 3’ for convenience. Beneath the
axle, and in immediate contact with it, we arrange a scatteier, F, made of two side-pieces, united by any num-
ber of wires placed in groups throughout its length, the wires in each group being wide enough apart to permit
the passage of the sced hetween them, and the groups being so placed as that one shall be directly beneath each

using the frame and wires. This scatterer may reciproeate in grooves cut in the under inner edges of the plates
# and ¥, being held up by straps, f %, placed and fastened to the bottom of the axle. A wheel, G, having teeth
on its face and inner edge, is secured to the inside of the wheel €, and fotates :with: it. A~ pinion, g, gearing
with the teeth on the edge of the wheel G, rotates on a stud in the axle, and carries a disk on its top, to which
o crank-pin, A, is secured. A pitman or bent strap, 4, is seccured at one end to. the scatterer, and the other rests
on the crank-pin A, and as the machine advances the rotation of the crank-pin vibrates the scatterer rapidly;
or the scatterer may be vibrated by an eccentric instead of a crank-pin. It is obvious that when desired the
seatterers may be made in sepavate pieces, and connccted to a vibrating rod to give them motion, To suspend
the operation of sowing while the machine is going to the field, or turning or moving on the road, we have the
toothed wheel G united to the wheel ¢ by a sliding connection under the control of o slide-bar, 5, and hand-
lever, 6, the bar being properly secured in guides.7 and 8, with a stop-¢atch, 9, to hald the lever in position.

boxes, open at the top- and bottom, between the sced-gauge and the scatterer, so that the grain may not rest in .

one of the openings in the hopper; or the scatterer may be stamped out of a strip of sheet metal instead of

Thus moving the lever to the right will throw the sowing mechanism out of gear, while moving it'to the left
will put it in operation. - The seed-trough is provided with suitable openings, &, in its bottom, with inclined
strips, 7, between the openings. A rod, H, shown in dotted lines in fig. 2, passes through the bottom of the
trough, and earries a toothed pinion, m, on the end next the wheel C, and small pinions, n, that rotate in the
openings % of the seed-trough. The pinion m gears with the teeth on the face of the gear-wheel G when the
trough is in position; and thus, whén the machine is in motion, the rod H is rotated bencath the trough, and
the pinions » deliver the grain in regulated quantities. A plate, o, covers the bottom of *the grain-trough, and
has, beneath the pinions 2 on the rod H, triangular openings, R.  On the plate o a gauge-plate is made to slide
so as to open or close the triangular-shaped openings R, the gauge-plate being attached to a bolt, p, that carries
a tightening-serew nut by the strap ¢ and when the tightening nut -is released the gauge-plate can be moved
to the vight and left to cover more or less of the triangular openings, which, from their shape, require the gauge
to be moved but a short distance to adapt the feed to sced of any-size, or to deliver it in any quantity desived.
The seed, in falling through tlie hoxes d, reaches the scatterer in an open state, instcad of falling in a mass,
and is loosened in the boxes, even when in a damp condition, by the motion of the seatterers, in passing through
which the seed is knocked with force sufficient-to scatter it-evenly over the ground. To the rear plate b of the
axle, and at its lower rear edge, we attach staples or collars, 7, as many as we propese to use coverers or culti-,
vators with each machine. The shanks which support the coverers are madc from straight strips of sheet metal,
each shank being composed of two plates, 1 and 2, that ave united near their centre upon a brace or stay-block,
3, by = rivet which passes through the plates and block to hold them together. These stay-rods are coupled, at
the point where they are attached to the axle, by having the leaves or strips of two shanks brought togetherin
one of the staples, where they are sccured by a bolt; and thus the shanks are seeurely braced against lateral
vibration, which would not be the case were hoth plates of the samie shank pivoted to one staple. DBetween the
opposite or rear ends of the plates of the shanks we pivot the coverers or cultivators s, which are bent at their
upper ends in the form of an §, and have holes punched through at several places, while the cultivator teeth
or coverers, of any of the most approved forms, are attached to their lower ends. Holes are punched in the
ends of the shanks opposite the holes in the ends of the ecultivators, and the shenks and cultivators ave held
together by wooden pins passed through-these holes in both; and when the tooth of the cultivator encountersa
rigid obstacle the breaking of the wooden pin releases this connection with the shank, and the cultivator swings
back uninjured. At the same tine, the change of the wooden pin from one hole to the other, in the upper end
of the cultivators s, will give the tooth a new adjustment, and cnable it to work deeper or shallower, as may be
desired.  The whole of the shanks are attached by chains, ¢, to a bar, L, that is pivoted by straps, M and M,
to the axle Aj and of course the har is free to risc and fall; but to regulate its 1)os}tion and fix it when at the
elevation desired, we fix a rack-segment, , sccurely to the centre of the rear plate of the axle. To this plate
we pivot a lever, w, that has & spring-catch, #, attached to it by a rod that terminates at onc end in a lateh, =,
near the handle of the lever 2, and at the other end in the cateh which works in the segment-rack. Now, when
it is desired to raise the cultivators out of the ground. it is only necessary to lift the lever w, and the spring-
catch will hold the heam L in an elevated position, because the catch will rest on a higher tooth in the segment-
ratchet . When it is desired to depress the cultivators so that they can work in the ground, it is only neces-
sary to press the latch, when the spring-catch will be withdrawn from the ratehet and the caltivators will fail
into 2 working position. .

What we claim as our invention, and desire to secure by Letters Patent, is— g

1. A scatterer placed below the axle, and arranged and operated substantially in the manner and for the
purpose set forth. :

2. The arrangement of a series of seed-boxes between the grain-box and scatterer, substantially as and
for the purpose set forth. .

8. The axle so constructed as to form the frame supporting the. seed-box and cultivators, and the boxes
between the seed-box and scatterer. .

4. The combination of a gauge-plate, triangular openings in the bottom of the seed-box, and feeding pin-
jons, with the sced-trough, substantially as and for the purpose set forth.

5. The drag-bars, when formed substantially as described, and dombined with the axle and cultivators,
substantially as and for the purpose set forth.

In testimony whereof we have hereunto subscribed our names.
A. R. EGGLESTON,
. CIIARLES T. SWAIN.
Witnesses:

Gro. PERKINS, |

THo% BRYANT.

LEFT AND ABOVE, is the patent issued to Andrew R. Eggleston and
Charles F. Swain for their improved seeing machine. Bottom left are
accompanying drawings that went with the patent.  submitted photo

seeder could be set or calibrated
to create evenly plowed rows
while also setting seeds for plant
growth, and covering the seeds
with topsoil. The invention was
horse-drawn, and had a box to
hold the actual plant seeds as a
completely automated piece of
equipment.

Witnesses to the patent ap-
plication included Ripon resident
and attorney George Perkins

(1820-1906), who went on to
become a Fond du Lac County
Judge.

Launch & recognition

The Wisconsin State Agri-
cultural Society gave honorable
mention to the new Eggleston &
Swain Seed Grain Drill as a “seed
invention” when the product was
first seen in exhibition in the year
1868.

No. 62,269.
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EGGLESTON & SWAIN.

Grain Drill.

Patented Feb. 19, 1867.

Hdidore s ..

The seed grain drill was adver-
tised as a “broadcast sower and
cultivator combined” and may be
found featured in The Wisconsin
Farmer Volume
No. 18 edition,
published in
Madison, Wis.,
in 1867.

That article
also noted that
the seed grain
drill is “to be

DID YOU KNOW?

There were 110 U.S.

Patent applications
filed from individuals from
Ripon in the 1800s

which proves the popularity and
use of the Eggleston & Swain
product concept.

The seed and grain drill is
credited with a
more-even seed
germination
and also reduc-
ing weeds in
modern farm-
ing today.

used for spring
planting of cereal grains, evenly
spaced ross, shallow trenches,
this grain spreader drops seed at
pre-selected distances and covers
them with soil.”

There were 50 manufacturers
of seed and grain drills by 1890,

1.2 helpi P1aCE!

HWY. 23 WEST
(920) 748-3360

Locally owned and operated
in Ripon Since 1948

www.acehardware.com  MON-FRI: 7AM-6PM e SAT: 7AM-6PM e SUN: 8AM-4PM

The Ripon
Historical So-
ciety is the oldest continually
operating historical society in
Wisconsin. Itis open Fridays and
Saturdays 10 a.m. to 1 p.m.

For more information follow
us at Facebook/riponhistory or
WwWw.riponhistory.org
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WAUTOMA

983 EAST PLAZA RD
(920) 787-4911

Family owned & operated in
Wautoma since November 2007




